

### The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County...

## Metro Beer Board **Minutes** April 13, 2023

Meeting Date/Location: Thursday, April 13, 2023 @ 12:00 P.M. **Howard Office Building** 700 President Ronald Reagan Way **Sonny West Meeting Room** Nashville, TN 37210

BOARD MEMBERS	STAFF PRESENT	MEMBER ATTENDANCE	OTHERS PRESENT
Mr. Brian Taylor, Chairperson Kia Jarmon, Vice Chairperson Mr. William Conway Ms. Delfine Fox Mr. Joe Perlen Ms. Karolyn Perry Ms. Bailey Spaulding Mr. Matthew Garth, Attorney	Benton McDonough, Director Terrence Darby Sr, ASO IV Douglas James Jr, ASO III Darrell Hardrick, Inspector III Melvin S Brown Jr., Special Assistant to the Director Amanda Webb, Inspector I Herschel French, OSS I		

- \* CALL TO ORDER
- \* APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

$\Lambda$ DD=	$\Lambda$ $\Gamma$		$\Box C T C$	SIO	NIC
APPE/	$\mathbf{AL} \ \mathbf{O}$	$\Gamma$ $\cup$	ECI:	סזכ	LVI

If you are not satisfied with a decision of the Metropolitan Beer Permit Board regarding your application or your hearing, you may appeal the decision to the Davidson County Chancery or Circuit Court pursuant to the requirements set forth in T.C.A. 57-5-108. The decisions of the Metropolitan Beer Permit Board take effect on a date to be determined by the board. However, you may file an appeal within 60 days of the date of entry of the board's decision. We advise that you seek your own independent legal advice to ensure that your appeal is filed in a timely manner and that all procedural requirements have been met.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER		
Vice Chairperson Jarmon called the meeting to order at 12:15 P.M.  Vice Chairperson Jarmon made a motion to approve the	Motion:  First: Second: Opposed:	
ADDITIONS EOD ADDROVAL		

### 'PLICATIONS FOR APPROVA

(1) Walker Brothers Beverage Co., 411 Haynie Ave #101 37207, WALKER BROTHERS T22-27660

**MNUFACTURE** (NEW LOCATION) (Dist. #02)

(2) Golden Pony LLC, 757 Douglas A	Ave 37207, GOLDEN PONY	T22-27794
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #05)
(3) Rhizome Productions Inc., 700 V	Voodland St 37206, THE EAST NASHVILLE	T23-28168
BEER FESTIVAL		
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT OLD)	(Dist. #06)
	April 15, 2023	
(4) The Eighth Room, LLC, 2106 8Th	Ave S 37204, THE EIGHTH ROOM	T22-27937
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(5) The Wedge Pizza and Pub, LLC, .	2026 Lindell Ave 37203, WEDGE PIZZA AND PUB	T23-28113
ON/OFF-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(6) Diskin Cider, LLC, 1235 Martin S	t 37203, DISKIN CIDER 5YR ANNIVERSARY	T23-28166
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT NEW)	(Dist. #17)
	5/13/2023	
(7) Honky Tonk Party Express, LLC,	1343 Lewis St 37210, HONKY TONK PARTY	T23-28201
EXPRESS		
DLVRYCRBSD	(OTHER)	(Dist. #17)
(8) SODEXO OPERATIONS, LLC, 190	9 15Th Ave S 37212, SODEXO OPERATIONS, LLC	T22-27855
CATERER		(Dist. #18)

(9) Apiary RMG LLC, 1907	West End Ave 37203, CRAB FEVER - NASHVILLE	T23-28141
ON/OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #19)
(10) Rhizome Productions II	nc., 121 4Th Ave S 37201, MUSIC CITY BEER GARDEN	T23-28169
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT OLD)	(Dist. #19)
	May 7-9, 2023	
(11) WHITE LODGING SERV	ICES CORPORATION, 301 3Rd Ave S 37201, <b>HYATT</b>	T23-28180
PLACE NASHVILLE		
ON-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #19)
(12) RR Hospitality Nashvill	e, LLC, 208 Broadway 37201, REDNECK RIVIERA	T23-28197
NASHVILLE		
CATERER		(Dist. #19)
(13) Pinewood Social, LLC, 3	33 Peabody St 37210, PINEWOOD SOCIAL	T23-28204
ON-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #19)
(14) Marley Market LLC, 13	13 51St Ave N 37209, LAVERTE'S MARKET	T23-28101
OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #20)

(15) El General Inc, 2032 Wes	st End Ave 37203, <b>CINCO DE MAYO MEXICAN</b>	T22-28047
RESTAURANT		
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #21)
(16) Avo Inc, 4 City Blvd #104	37209, <b>AVO</b>	T23-28130
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #21)
(17) Centennial Park Conserv	vancy, 2500 West End Ave 37203, NASHVILLE EARTH DAY	T23-28200
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT NEW)	(Dist. #21)
	April 22, 2023 (Rain Date: April 23)	,
(18) Wynot Saloon LLC, 142 E	Belle Forest Cir 37221, <b>WYNOT SALOON</b>	T23-28104
ON/OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #22)
(19) <i>A1 FOODMART LLC, 440</i>	9 Harding Pike 37205, <b>QUICK MART</b>	T23-28088
OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #24)
(20)4916 Charlotte, LLC, 4916	Charlotte Ave 37209, STREETCAR TAPS AND GARDEN	T22-27712
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #24)
(21) Loveless Cafe LLC, 8456	Highway 100 37221, <b>NATCHEZ TRACE MARKET</b>	T22-27996
OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #35)

Following Vice Chairperson Jarmon's reading of the approved applications, Mr. Conway made a motion to grant final approval. Ms. Perry seconded the motion to grant final approval. The Board then voted unanimously to grant final approval.

# DEFER INDEFINITELY MISSING DOCUMENTS

(22) Bordeaux Little Barn Inc, 3909 Clari	ksville Pike 37218, <b>LITTLE BARN MARKET</b>	T23-28205
OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #01)
(23) Stinson Road LLC, 747 Douglas Ave	#105 B 37207, <b>KISSER BBQ</b>	T23-28177
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #05)
(24) The Boedecker Foundation, 1600 R	iverside Dr 37216, RIVERSIDE REVIVAL	T23-28209
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #07)
(25) SHERMAY TACOS, 422 Northside Di	r 37115, SHERMAY TACOS	D23-28182
MOBONSALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #10)
(26) Rawhide LLC, 333 Swinging Bridge	Rd 37138, RAWHIDES	T23-28185
ON/OFF-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #11)

(27) Adventure Science Center	r, 800 Fort Negley Blvd 37203, SCIENCE OF BEER	T23-28183
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT OLD)	(Dist. #17)
	April 21, 2023	
(28) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fess	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (OFFICE)	T23-28189
МОВВУОВ	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(29) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fess	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (OFFICE)	T23-28190
MOBONSALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(30) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fessi	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (S001)	T23-28191
МОВВУОВ	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(31) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fessi	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (S001)	T23-28192
MOBONSALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(32) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fessi	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (S002)	T23-28193
MOBBYOB	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(33) Tan Assets, LLC, 747 Fessi	lers Ln 37210, THE NASHVILLE TRACTOR (S002)	T23-28194
MOBONSALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)

(34) 425 Chestnut Restaurant Owner LLC, 425 Chestnut St 37203, DICEY'S PIZZ	<b>A &amp; TAVERN</b> T23-28198
CATERER	(Dist. #17)
(35) Hero Doughnuts Wedgewood, LLC, 1131 4Th Ave S #120 37210, HERO	T23-28212
DOUGHNUTS & BUNS	
ON-SALE (NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #17)
(36) Grandpa Bar LLC, 1501 Herman St 37208, <b>GRANDPA BAR</b>	D23-28174
ON-SALE	(Dist. #19)
(37) State and Liberty Clothing Company, 5060 Broadway Pl 37203, STATE ANI	<b>D</b> T23-28184
LIBERTY CLOTHING COMPANY	
ON-SALE (NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #19)
(38) 222 Venture LLC, 222 4Th Ave N 37219, SINATRA BAR & LOUNGE	T23-28186
ON-SALE (NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #19)
(20) 6 7 6 44 6 222 47 4 4 27240 201717217217217217	
(39) SoTurf, LLC, 222 4Th Ave N 37219, SOUTHERN TURF CLUB	T23-28187
ON-SALE (NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #19)

	Inc, 1900 Broadway 37203, BROADWAY BREWPUB &	T23-28196
GRUB		
ON-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #19)
(41) Wildhorse Saloo	n Entertainment Ventures, LLC, 120 2Nd Ave N 37201,	T23-28202
WILDHORSE SALOOI	N	
ON-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #19)
	n Entertainment Ventures, LLC, 120 2Nd Ave N 37201,	T23-28203
WILDHORSE SALOOI	N .	
CATERER		(Dist. #19)
(12) Nachvilla Brida F	actival 600 James Robertson Plana 27210 NASUVILLE PRIDE	D22 20207
FESTIVAL	estival, 600 James Robertson Pkwy 37219, <b>NASHVILLE PRIDE</b>	D23-28207
SPECIAL	(SDECIAL EVENT OLD)	(Dist. #19)
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT OLD)	(DISC. #19)
(AA) Freehird Stores		T22.20212
OIN-SALE	(INEVV LOCATION)	(טוטנ. #בא)
(45) Centennial Park	Conservancy, 2500 West End Ave 37203. MUSICIANS CORNER	T23-28214
SPECIAL	(SPECIAL EVENT NEW)	(Dist. #21)
ON-SALE  (45) Centennial Park	June 24-25 2023  Inc., 150 2Nd Ave N, Suite 100 37201, FREEBIRD STORES, INC  (NEW LOCATION)  Conservancy, 2500 West End Ave 37203, MUSICIANS CORNER	T23-28213 (Dist. #19) T23-28214

	May 19, 20, 26, 27, 28, June 2, 3, 8, 9, 10	
	Highway 70 S 37221, TAZIKI'S MEDITERRANEAN CAFE	T23-28206
ON-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #22)
,	NG COMPANY, 410 39Th Ave N 37209, BOLD PATRIOT	T23-28210
MNUFACTURE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #24)
WINOFACTORE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #24)
(48) BOLD PATRIOT BREWI	NG COMPANY, 410 39Th Ave N 37209, BOLD PATRIOT	T23-28211
BREWING CO		
ON-SALE	(CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP)	(Dist. #24)
(40) = (40) = (40)		
(49) Thorntons LLC, 2136 C	Century Farms Pkwy 37013, <b>THORNTONS #620</b>	T23-28199
OFF-SALE	(NEW LOCATION)	(Dist. #32)
(50) Two S Management, L	LC, 8128 Highway 100 37221, <b>CAFE 100</b>	T23-28195
ON-SALE	(EXPANSION)	(Dist. #35)

Following Vice Chairperson Jarmon's reading of the defer indefinite applications, Mr. Conway made a motion to defer the applications indefinitely. Ms. Perry seconded the motion. The Board then voted unanimously to defer the applications indefinitely.

### COMPLAINTS

(51) DOLGENCORP LLC, 4491 Lebanon PIKE 37076, Dollar General Market

08-16376

OFF-SALE

(Dist. #11)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or Employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 28, 2023). (3<sup>rd</sup> Offense)

**STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$2500 Civil Penalty** 

(52) Pariah Hospitality LLC, 4957 LEBANON PIKE 37138, DOUBLE E BAR AND GRILL

21-27424

ON-SALE

(Dist. #11)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or Employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 28, 2023). (2<sup>nd</sup> Offense)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$2500 Civil Penalty

(53) Kroger Limited Partnership I, 143 McGavock PIKE 37214, Kroger Food & Drug #845 02-15711

OFF-SALE (Dist. #15)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 14, 2023). (1<sup>st</sup> Offense)

**STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$1500 Civil Penalty** 

(54)L&S Family Entertainment, LLC, 2710 OLD LEBANON PIKE 37214, **DONELSON** 

18-25447

**STRIKE & SPARE** 

ON-SALE (Dist. #15)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 09, 2023). (1st Offense)

**STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$1500 Civil Penalty** 

(55) Habanero Grill, LLC., 2543 LEBANON PIKE 37214, HABANERO GRILL

18-25750

ON-SALE (Dist. #15)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 02, 2023). (2<sup>nd</sup> Offense)

**STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$2500 Civil Penalty** 

(56) Edley's Donelson, LLC, 2719 LEBANON PIKE 37214, EDLEY'S BAR-B-QUE DONELSON 22-27924

ON/OFF-SALE (Dist. #15)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 02, 2023). (1st Offense x2)

**STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$2000 Civil Penalty** 

(57) G.F. Enterprise IV LLC, 131 2ND AVE N 37201, TACO BELL CANTINA

20-26779

#### NASHVILLE DOWNTOWN

ON-SALE (Dist. #19)

(Alleged violation of M.C.L 7.08.140C It is unlawful for any beer permit holder or his agent or employee to make or permit to be made any sale of beer to a person under twenty-one years of age on or about March 23, 2023). (1st Offense x2)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: \$2000 Civil Penalty

Following Vice Chairperson Jarmon's reading of the complaints and staff recommendations, Mr. Conway made a motion to accept the staff recommendations as read. Ms. Perry seconded the motion. The Board then voted unanimously to accept the staff recommendations as read.

### (58) ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Staff request approval to issue citations assessing permit holders, with unpaid privilege tax fees, a \$500 civil penalty. Upon approval, citations will be hand delivered to the appropriate business location. Those found to be out of business, staff will rescind the citation and administratively close the respective case files.

Following Vice Chairperson Jarmon's reading of administrative matters, Mr. Darby provided a list of locations to the Board that have not paid the 2023 Privilege Tax Fee. Mr. Darby requested citations be issued to each with a civil penalty of \$500 for a violation of M.C.L 7.08.060(B)(2) Fees – Application. Those locations found to be out of business, staff would rescind the citation and administratively close the case file.

Ms. Perry made a motion to accept staff recommendations. Mr. Conway seconded the motion.

The Board voted unanimously to accept the recommendations as read.
(59) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT  Director McDonough read the Directors report. The Board had no questions.
Next Beer Board Meeting: Wednesday, 4/26/23, at 5:30 P.M.
Location: Howard Office Building
Sonny West Meeting Room
700 President Ronald Reagan Way
Nashville, TN 37210
Finding no further business before the Board, Vice Chairperson Jarmon adjourned the meeting at 12:32 P.M.

